
Meeting papers

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny 
Committee

Wednesday 18 March 2020 at 1.30 pm

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester





Date Published:10 March 2020     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 18 March 2020 at 1.30 pm

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the committee are invited to declare any pecuniary or 
personal interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Chair

2  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies. 

Chair

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 18)

To confirm the minutes of the previous meetings on:

a) 30 October 2019
b) 20 November 2019

Chair

4  WORK PLAN (Pages 19 - 20)

To review the Committee’s work plan and suggest possible future items (a 
copy of the work plan is attached).

Chair

5  SOCIAL MOBILITY UPDATE 

To receive a verbal progress update on the social mobility group work.

Jon McGinty

6  GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE 
UPDATE 

To receive a verbal update on the GEGJC meeting held earlier the same 
day from the Chair, Cllr Patrick Molyneux. 

Cllr Patrick 
Molyneux



    

Scrutiny members are invited to attend the GEGJC meeting in an observer 
capacity.

7  REVIEW OF LOCAL MEETINGS (Pages 21 - 32)

To consider the attached summary report.

Chair

8  GFIRST LEP - PERFORMANCE REPORT (Pages 33 - 40)

To consider the attached quarter 3 performance reports for the GFirst 
LEP.

Mally Findlater

9  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the dates of future meetings:

ADDITIONAL: 20 May 2020 – Joint meeting with the Environment Scrutiny 
Committee
3 June 2020
16 September 2020
21 October 2020
18 November 2020

INFORMATION ITEM

10  DIRECTORS REPORT (Pages 41 - 44)

To note an update report from Colin Chick, Executive Director of 
Economy, Environment and Infrastructure, on Economic Growth issues in 
the County.

Colin Chick

Membership –  Cllr Brian Robinson, Cllr Matt Babbage, Cllr Kevin Cromwell (Chair), 
Cllr Stephen Davies, Cllr Ben Evans, Cllr Kate Haigh (Vice-Chair), Cllr Klara Sudbury and 
Cllr Sajid Patel Cllr Nicky Packer, Cllr Paul McCloskey, Cllr Jim Dewey, Cllr John Murphy and Cllr 
Gina Blomefield

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, Rob 
Ayliffe 01452 328506 / e-mail: Rob.Ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of 
the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324094 / e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 

the Constitution).

mailto:Rob.Ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

(d) Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee held 
on Wednesday 30 October 2019 at the Council Chamber, Stroud District Council.

PRESENT:
Cllr Matt Babbage
Cllr Kevin Cromwell (Chair)
Cllr Stephen Davies
Cllr Ben Evans
Cllr Kate Haigh (Vice-Chair)

Cllr Paul McCloskey
Cllr Jim Dewey
Cllr John Murphy
Cllr Gina Blomefield

Officers in attendance: David Owen, Pete Carr, Gillian Parkinson, Sophie Benfield, 
Colin Chick and Angela Presdee

Apologies: Cllr Brian  Robinson, Cllr Klara Sudbury, Cllr Nicky Packer, Cllr Sajid Patel, 
Mike Dawson, Claire Edwards, Simon Excell, Cllr Klara Sudbury 
(Cheltenham Borough Council) and Cllr Patrick Molyneux

1. WELCOME 

1.1 Chairman of the Committee, Cllr Kevin Cromwell, opened the meeting by 
thanking Stroud District Council (SDC) for hosting.

1.2 It was explained that the purpose of the meeting was to focus on issues 
relating specifically to the economic agenda of the SDC and for members to 
consider proposals on how engagement between the GFirst Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP), the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee, 
the Joint Scrutiny Committee and the Local Authorities might be improved.

1.3 The Chairman informed members that, from the discussion, an outcome 
report would be produced, incorporating the responses to any questions 
considered at the meeting.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Cllr McCloskey declared an interest as a non-executive director of Publica.

4. STROUD DISTRICT COUNCIL 

3.1 Cllr Dewy as the Stroud representative on the Economic Growth Scrutiny 
Committee introduced Kathy O’Leary, the Chief Executive at SDC to open 
the item. Members heard how unique and exciting the future of Stroud was 
for the Council, and the Committee were shown a short film that showcased 
the highlights of Stroud:

http://www.visitthecotswolds.org.uk/film/

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

http://www.visitthecotswolds.org.uk/film/


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

Presentation 1

3.2 Andrew Cummings, Strategic Director of Finance, was introduced to give the 
Committee an overview of economic growth in the area (presentation at 
annex 1).

3.3 The Committee heard that the overall Stroud’s economy, as with many 
areas, had both opportunities and challenges. They have an economy which 
is dominated by manufacturing with very large organisations such as 
Renishaw being based in district. On the other hand, it also has a large 
number (80%) of very small businesses which do not attract business rates 
and have less than 10 employees.

3.4 Slide 4 showed the Committee an annual survey of how satisfied residents 
and businesses were to live and work in the district. The graph displaying 
these results showed Stroud well above the Local Government Association 
national average on both, reaching between 94-96%. 

3.5 It was advised that the Council’s Corporate Delivery Plan had recently been 
refreshed for the following year which now included a key focus on the 
economy. There had also been an update of the procurement strategy to 
include a focus on social value, the climate emergency and the Unite 
Construction Charter. The Community Banking initiative also supported the 
economy by helping to provide funding to small businesses and individuals in 
the area who are unable to find it elsewhere.

3.6 Members were shown a picture of a site at Littlecombe which was one of the 
largest regeneration sites in Gloucestershire, offering both residential homes, 
community hospital and employment space.

3.7 Slide 7 outlined challenges that would need to be considered going forward. 
As with the rest of the County, there is a clear challenge around 
demographic, with the recent ONS statistics showing in the next 25 years 
that the working population in Stroud will rise by 2.6% whereas those retired 
will rise by 56%. In addition, the average house price in Stroud is just over 
nine times the average salary in the area. Meaning residents in the area 
often work outside to be able to afford the property and those working in the 
area often live outside. This also increases the reliance on public transport.

3.8 To finish the presentation, there was a summary of opportunities that lie 
ahead for Stroud. 

Presentation 2

3.9 Next there was a presentation from Mark Russell, Head of Planning 
Strategy, who gave an overview on the Stroud Local Plan Review 
(presentation at annex 2).

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

3.10 It was explained that the current local plan for SDC was adopted in 
November 2015 and they were currently in the delivery phase for this plan. 
Since 2015, the Council have started to deliver 5,500 houses, with an 
additional 500-800 due in the future. They have delivered 25 hectares of B 
class employment land and have another 42 hectares in the pipeline. This 
puts the district in a strong position for a post-Brexit economy.

3.11 Slide 4 gave an overview of the reasons for reviewing the Local Plan. 
Members heard that for housing especially, a ‘one county’ approach was 
vital and Stroud had committed to working with Gloucester to help address 
its shortfall in housing. It was noted that it wasn’t only the increase of 
housing that needed to be planned for in the review, but also the availability 
of business and employment land. Key sectors such as food production, 
renewables etc. rely on a sufficient supply of land.

3.12 Slide 8 showed the Committee a map of where the Local Plan was 
concentrating growth. It was advised this was centred around the main towns 
and main areas of employment, it would also create two new garden villages 
at Wisloe and Sharpness. 

3.13 These new settlements will be built around the garden city principles and will 
include 3,900 houses (with more planned post-2040), a secondary school, a 
sustainable transport system and new/or expanded rail stations. They stated 
that it was no longer an option to keep wrapping growth around existing 
growth, there was a need for new developments such as this to reach the 
housing requirements set by Government.

3.14 It was noted that carbon neutrality will be a golden thread running through 
the whole of the Local Plan in order to keep on track with the Council’s 
carbon neutral target. 

3.15 The Committee were informed that all local authorities in the county carried 
out a study of strategic areas that were within a 30 minute public transport 
route of Gloucester. Out of the seven shortlisted, four were within the Stroud 
district. 

3.16 Members noted slides 17 and 18 which summaries the timeline going 
forward and key challenges the Plan faced.

Presentation 3

3.17 The final presentation was given by Cllr Simon Pickering, Chair of 
Environment Committee, who gave an overview on ‘Carbon Neutral Stroud’ 
(presentation at annex 3).

3.18 The Committee were informed that Cllr Pickering has a background in 
renewable energy projects and wetlands, he is also currently the Principal 
Ecologist at Ecotricity.

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

3.19 Members heard an overview of the historical data on the global CO2 
concentration levels and increase in the earth’s temperature since 1880. 
Slides 5 and 6 showed how the increase in fossil fuels use has contributed to 
these levels.

3.20 It was highlighted that the first international agreement to control and 
manage greenhouse gases was adopted in 1992, the ‘United Nations 
Framework Convention on Climate Change’. Slide 8 showed members SDC 
had also been taking action on climate change since the early 1990’s.

3.21 Since 2001, SDC have been the lead local authority on the ‘Warm and Well’ 
scheme which worked with residents to improve the energy efficiency of their 
homes. Stroud also launched the ‘Target 2050 Loan’ for residential, 
community and business buildings. Both initiatives have given clear evidence 
that retrofitting existing buildings to make them more efficient can reduce 
their energy consumption, meaning reduced energy bills and CO2 emissions 
in the long-term.

3.22 Members noted from slides 14 and 15 of actions taken within the Council 
buildings and operations to lead to them being the first local authority in 
Europe to become carbon neutral.

3.23 It was highlighted that as well as taking action against climate change, they 
were also having to adapt to the changes. In relation to flooding, SDC have 
adopted a leading example of Natural Flood Management by ‘slowing the 
flow’ of water. Slide 19 showed the difference in the number of flood 
warnings issued between 2012 and 2016 since the scheme had been in 
place.

3.24 It was stressed that in order to meet carbon neutral targets using existing 
technology, whilst technically possible, it would require a dramatic change on 
all fronts. Slides 24 and 25 outlined required action, emphasised by the ‘and’ 
at each point.

3.25 Slide 26 showed members that this would not only require government 
action but 50% of emission responsibility was with individuals including 
switching energy providers, buying local, reducing meat and dairy 
consumption and transport options.

3.26 In order to meet renewable energy levels members were shown the amount 
of and maps of where, wind and solar energy outputs could be built in the 
county. 

3.27 The presentation was summarised with actions that needed to be taken 
across the county and country to address carbon neutrality (slides 33-53).

Members questions

3.28 A member asked how SDC’s plans would fit with the LEP plans in terms of 
infrastructure for public transport. The LEP reassured that the aspirations of 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

Stroud which the Committee had heard today fit well with the developing 
Local Industrial Strategy (LIS). The Committee were reminded that the three 
main areas the LIS focused on were the needs of young people (transport 
being the biggest challenge), Cyber (being a global competitor with GCHQ 
located in county) and the environment.

3.29 Officers from SDC highlighted its overall target with public transport was to 
reduce the need to travel at all. This was also an aspiration outlined in both 
the LIS and GCC’s Local Transport Plan Review. It was noted that in order to 
address the issues faced with public transport in the county, there was a 
need to change the pattern of growth that has been inherited over the last 50 
years.

3.30 In regards to rail links, the Committee were informed that SDC were 
safeguarding land at Stonehouse for a new train station and there was 
potential for one at Hunts Grove as well. It was reiterated that a railway 
network was a key component for the garden village initiative. 

3.31 A member noted the change in discussion since the Committee had begun 
its local meetings 2 years ago, particular in regards to climate change.

3.32 The Committee had a lengthy discussion about carbon neutral housing as it 
was recognised housing was a key area of improvement for Stroud, or 
anywhere in the county achieving its carbon neutral targets. 

3.33 The Committee heard examples of local authorities retrofitting social housing 
to achieve carbon neutrality on older buildings, which also allowed them to 
save money on maintenance costs in the long-term.

3.34 The Committee heard about a number of companies, who are developing 
and constructing modular housing. This was where all components of a 
house are constructed in a factory and then linked together at the building 
site. It was advised that the wastage from a site could reduce from 30% to 
around 3% using this method, as well as reducing the environmental effects 
of a construction site itself.

3.35 Members recognised that in order for these companies to ‘buy into’ the idea 
of carbon neutral housing, there would have to be demand within local areas. 
It was suggested there needed to be a discussion across the county on how 
to address this as a collective and attract these services into the area.

3.36 A member also highlighted that the increase in housing demand, coupled 
with a move to retrofit/produce carbon neutral housing, may lead to a void in 
the availability of skilled tradesman to carry out these works locally. It was 
recognised that in recent years there had been a move away from young 
people qualifying in traditional trades, notwithstanding the demographic 
challenge faced in the county.

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

3.37 If the county was going to become a magnet for young people staying and 
moving to the county for work, it would need to make sure education 
providers are offering the right skills to fit the growth demand.

3.38 A member referenced a piece of land on the M5 corridor which had huge 
potential for development, but was restricted by existing congestion in the 
area and the natural landscape. Officers reiterated that there needed to be a 
strategic plan for Gloucestershire, to avoid districts halting aspirations at their 
boundaries and instead looking at the County as a whole and making the 
best use of the land available. This would also allow combined bids to 
government and the pooling of resources from across the county for delivery.

3.39 A member questioned how the economic growth plans for the district were 
helping to lift communities out of poverty. It was advised that SDC had 
committed to increase its affordable housing availability as well as access to 
capital local housing allowance. 

3.30 It was recognised how SDC had moved away from negative phrasing when it 
came to environmental challenges. Instead of asking what we needed to 
stop doing, their presentations had focused on opportunities for the local 
economy. A member welcomed the drive for new skills in the county, which 
would be incredibly beneficial for young people.

LEP overview

3.31 The Chair invited David Owen, Chief Executive of the GFirst LEP, to give an 
overview of the LEP’s activities in Stroud.

3.32 The LEP started by supporting Stroud’s position on carbon neutrality and 
highlighted there is no reason why the environment and economic growth 
can’t go hand in hand. There were huge opportunities from having a real 
focus on the environment, noting this was also one of the three key priorities 
for the LIS.

3.33 Members were reminded that the public consultation on the draft LIS is due 
to end mid-November 2019. The next, and final stage, involved discussions 
with government and to finalise and approve the Strategy. After working 
under the Strategic Economic Plan for the past six years, the development of 
the LIS is a big change for the LEP. It will see a significant shift in priorities 
for the county, and see a new focus on the voices of young people. It was 
noted that the LEP had recently carried out a consultation on young peoples 
views of the Gloucestershire as a place to live, study and work.

ACTION: SHARE CONSULTATION WITH COMMITTEE – 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

3.34 One of the main messages from the consultation was young peoples care for 
the environment and climate issues more broadly. This therefore showed a 
strong link with opportunities presented by Stroud.

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

3.35 It was advised that Stroud has received £25 million through grant/loan 
investment from the LEP, the 3rd largest investment in the county. The 
following projects have been included in this investment:
 Berkeley Cyber Security Centre C11
 A38 Berkeley bridge restoration
 Merrywalks Centre
 Growth Hub for Stroud
 Relocation of the Stroud Metal Company
 A419 upgrade through Stonehouse

3.36 The LEP’s education team was working with schools and colleges 
throughout the county to help support and coach young people to brighter 
economic futures in Gloucestershire.

3.37 The LEP welcomed the continued good relationships with the districts.

3.38 A member questioned why the Real Living Wage was not being paid across 
the board for Council run services. It was advised that at this stage in time, 
the Council could not afford to do so; if so, it would currently be bankrupted 
by social care contracts alone. The point however was noted.

3.39 There was a discussion about the need for a joined up approach to land 
supply across the county. It was noted that in the next 25-30 years, the 
county would need to deliver housing for a 50% rise in population and it was 
not viable to just continue to build around existing settlements. It was noted 
this planning technique also had a knock on effect on public transport 
capacity and highways congestion. 

3.40 Linking to the need for a joined up approach, the Committee were advised 
that officers and the relevant Cabinet Members will be visiting the Chief 
Executives, Leaders and other relevant senior officers and Members from 
each of the Gloucestershire Districts over the next few months to discuss a 
number of key issues to gain a better understanding and forge stronger 
partnerships. These key issues will include strategic planning, climate 
change, major infrastructure requirements (particularly those required to 
deliver long term economic and housing growth), Fastershire and skills and 
employment.

3.41 It was also noted that it is very difficult for joint working in the absence of 
national strategic plan guidance from central government.

3.42 A member questioned that when GCC were looking to sell land, whether 
they would consider transferring the land to the relevant district authority to 
help with facilitating housing development. It was advised that such 
conversations and negotiations do happen and agreement is reached where 
possible. Where authorities are not able to agree however, it was stressed 
that land sales is a huge part of the county council’s resource and without 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

the capital, it could not provide the level of service it needs to. It was advised 
that the Stroud Youth Council had also highlighted housing availability and/or 
cost as a main concern for them.

3.43 There was a discussion about accessibility to services and locations, in 
particular buses not currently serving the right destinations in the county. 
Many had experiences of not being able to reach rural areas or new 
developments where the buses had not been linked up correctly. It was 
advised this was the main issue of a non-regulated service, the buses in the 
County are commercially provided meaning they will not operate services 
which cause a financial loss to the company.

Work planning

3.44 The Chair asked members of the Committee whether there had been any 
topics raised during this meetings discussion that they would like to add to 
the work plan as a future item for consideration.

3.45 The Committee requested an update once the county-wide meetings have 
taken place regarding infrastructure needs.

ACTION COLIN CHICK

3.46 It was noted that recently, all 6 district authorities plus the county had 
developed climate change plans and it was queried how these could be co-
ordinated going forward. 

3.47 The Committee requested to explore the developing green industry in the 
county in more detail, specifically in relation to modular building.

3.48 It was requested that the GFirst LEP’s recent Youth Survey was distributed 
to the Committee in preparation for the next meeting.

ACTION DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

CHAIR

Meeting concluded at 16:00.

Page 8



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee held 
on Wednesday 20 November 2019 at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT:
Cllr Brian Robinson
Cllr Matt Babbage
Cllr Kevin Cromwell 
(Chairman)
Cllr Stephen Davies
Cllr Ben Evans
Cllr Kate Haigh (Vice-
Chairman)

Cllr Klara Sudbury
Cllr Paul McCloskey
Cllr Sajid Patel
Cllr John Murphy
Cllr Gina Blomefield

Substitutes: Cllr Thom Forester

Officers in attendance: Mike Dawson, Claire Edwards, Sophie Benfield, Simon Excell, 
Angela Presdee and Mally Findlater

Apologies: Cllr Nicky Packer, Cllr Jim Dewey, David Owen, Pete Carr and 
Colin Chick

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

3. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meetings held on both 4 September 2019 and 18 September 
2019 were approved and signed by the Chair.

8. WORK PLAN 

8.1 The Chair requested, inline with the Council’s recent Scrutiny Review, that 
the work plan item to be considered first going forward.

8.2 Members confirmed the items as previously planned for the first two 
meetings in 2020.

8.3 On requesting any further items for considered, a member questioned 
whether there would be a second scrutiny item on the Local Transport Plan 
post its public consultation. Officers advised they were due to take an update 
to Cabinet on 20th December which they will share with this Committee. If 
there are significant questions after this, a further item can be considered.

ACTION: SIMON EXCELL

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

5. MOBILE CONNECTIVITY 

5.1 The Chair requested to take item 5 first and invited Hamish Macleod, 
Director of Mobile UK, to present this item covering the 5G and 4G 
programmes and what localities can do to support the mobile network.  
Mobile UK is the trade association for 4 of the UK’s mobile network operators 
- EE, O2, Three and Vodafone. 

5G

5.2 The Committee heard that there are currently 90 million mobile connections 
in the UK and following the launch of 4G in 2012, 90% of the traffic on the 
network was now data as opposed to voice. 

5.3 Referencing the topic of health issues relating to 5G, Members were shown 
a picture of an Electro Magnetic Spectrum which highlighted the difference in 
frequency of mobile phone signals compared to visible light. 

5.4 It was advised that mobile frequencies were governed by the International 
Commission on Non-Ionizing Radiation Protection (ICNIRP) Guidelines 
which provided scientific advice and guidance for the design and use of 
mobile phone masts and Wi-Fi, for example.

5.5 These guidelines were currently going through a refresh process with a new 
version due in 2020.

5.6 Members were shown a screenshot images from a BBC news channel 
programme ‘Click’ which looked into the health effects of 5G. Slides 4 and 5 
showed two different frequency readings at a 30cm distance to a 3m 
distance away from the transmitter. The probe showed a significant drop in 
frequency levels from 551.6% to 6.23% the further away the probe was from 
the transmitter. A further decrease was shown in slide 6.

5.7 It was informed that the 5G connection had much higher data rates and 
capacity on the network, which had been struggling since the significant 
increase in traffic from 2012. It also had Lower Latency (reaction times), 
which could support specialised and mission critical applications and would 
have a significant innovative impact.

5.8 Members heard that West Midlands ambulance have already installed 5G in 
their vehicles allowing doctors to already begin treatment on patients on their 
way to hospital.

5.9 The Department for Digital, Culture, Media & Sport set up a number of 
‘Testbeds’ in 2017 in a range of geographic areas to explore the benefits and 
challenges of deploying 5G. Linking to Gloucestershire, it was reassured that 
a number of these ‘Testbeds’ were in rural areas.

Page 10



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

4G

5.10 As previously noted, 4G was still being rolled out in some areas. The 
Committee heard that in October, a joint enterprise was announced with the 
Government called the Shared Rural Network (SRN). This made £1 billion 
available to address issues faced in rural areas by poor mobile phone 
coverage. 

5.11 It was expected to bring a significant improvement of 4G access and take 
coverage of all 4 providers (o2, Three, EE and Vodafone) to 95% by 2025. 
This would be achieved by opening up and sharing existing masts and 
infrastructure between the providers. 

5.12 It was explained that all parties reacted well to the announcement and it on 
track to be up and running post the 2019 general election.

Local authority support

5.13 Members heard that the best way for local authorities to help with the 
development of successful mobile networks is to show it as a significant 
importance in policy, assets and planning.

5.14 In 2015, the electronics communication code was reformed to allow mobile 
phone operators an equal footing with power/water companies on installing 
and maintaining apparatus on public and private land. Operators currently 
spend about £300 million per year on site rent.

5.15 It was therefore important that all sectors within local authorities e.g. 
economic growth/property services provide access to their sites at ‘code 
value’.

5.16 Members were advised that planning applications were often more difficult 
for mobile phone infrastructure, there had been a request made to 
Government by the industry to relook at the planning legislation as it was 
currently easier to build new than enhance existing.

Member questions

5.17 A member questions the timescale for the 5G roll out. It was advised that the 
4G and 5G roll out was happening in tandem. Where the 4G was already 
available, the 5G upgrade would be overlaid on the existing infrastructure. As 
5G technology had yet to be certified by Ofcom, the timescale for wider roll 
out of investment across the UK was dependent on this and also on an 
area’s existing connectivity.

5.18 It was highlighted that where it stated 95% coverage on 5G, it tended to be 
that the remaining 5% was concentrated in one particular area. This was 
something the rural areas in Gloucestershire have experienced with digital 
connectivity. The Committee requested that Mobile UK fed back coverage 

Page 11



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

data for Gloucestershire. This information would be provided by Mobile UK 
when avaliable.

ACTION MOBILE UK/ANGELA PRESDEE

5.19 Comparing the difference between fibre and 5G, members were advised that 
due to its reliance on radio frequency, 5G does have restricted capacity 
where as fibre doesn’t. It was informed however that 5G would still have its 
place and was a viable alternative for areas who struggle to access a fibre 
connection. This was questioned by a member who explained that the 5G 
network uses fibre optic cables for data-transfer - and therefore, 5G could 
offer no improvements in terms of speed, over what was provided by direct 
fibre.

5.20 A member noted that there were still some areas that struggle to get 3G 
coverage or any service at all. It was advised that sometimes it was capacity 
issues rather than coverage but this was something the SRN would address. 

5.21 It was advised that the Government’s previous mobile network coverage 
scheme launched in 2011 (the Mobile Infrastructure Project) only pledged 
£150 million, as the SRN would have £1 billion, providers were confident 
there would be a significant improvement for these areas.

5.22 A member questioned whether the upgrade to 5G would have an effect on 
the energy demand on the system, and whether this was moving network 
providers in the right direction in terms of carbon neutrality. The Mobile UK 
representative agreed to provide a response to the Committee.

ACTION MOBILE UK/ANGELA PRESDEE

5.23 A member questioned what the envisaged timeline was for 6G becoming 
available. The Committee were informed that it is currently not confirmed 
whether 6G would be developed or whether there would just be continual 
evolution of 5G versions.

5.24 A member raised a concern about statements made regarding the health 
effects of 5G stating that the current ICNIRP guidelines relied on by Public 
Health were at present subject to scrutiny by scientists, academics and 
medical professionals. A member said that the safety guidelines were based 
primarily on research conducted in the late 1990’s and were determined 
solely on the ability of electromagnetic radiation to directly heat flesh, 
whereas there was now evidence which showed biological and health 
impacts at non-thermal levels as well.

5.25 In addition, a member highlighted that where 4G used a form of 
electromagnetic radiation, power levels would drop off exponentially the 
further it travelled away from the source, 5G transmitters however, used a 
‘phased array’ antenna allowing a far greater power-level to be transferred 
over a distance.

Page 12



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

5.26 It was suggested that the scrutiny committee seek independent scientific and 
medical advice on this issue, and not rely solely on industry representations, 
making reference to the earlier discussions within the Joint Committee 
regarding a co-dependent relationship between public health and economic 
growth. The Chair advised that looking at the health implications of 5G would 
not be within this Scrutiny Committees remit.

4. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE (GEGJC) 
UPDATE 

4.1 The Chair invited Cllr Patrick Molyneux as Chair of the Joint Economic 
Growth Committee to give members an update on the mornings meeting.

(Papers for the meeting can be viewed at the following link: 
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=
9096&Ver=4)

4.2 For the meetings first section, the Committee heard a summary of four 
presentations that were received as follows:

Fastershire Broadband Programme
 The Joint Committee had received an update on the programme delivery 

to date, and were advised that a revision of the current strategy to 2022 
would be brought to Cabinet in December for approval. This would 
include a new stage 5 procurement approach.

 It highlighted the up to date statistics and percentages of coverage from 
fibre to premise per district area, as well as highlighting those areas that 
still need to be enabled with faster broadband coverage.

 For the revised 2019-2022 strategy delivery plans, it was advised that it 
will focus on a more flexible approach of delivering solutions for those 
properties in rural areas that have no enabled.

Public Health Annual Report
 Linking public health to economic growth and the future of the county.
 Highlighting the ‘health and wealth cycle’; which suggested that being in 

good employment was good for health and what is good for health, is 
also good for business.

 Understanding health inequalities in the county and the need to work 
towards inclusive growth.

Local Nature Partnership Infrastructure Policy Pledge
 The Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership has already created a 

Nature Recovery Network map which is a habitat connectivity and 
biodiversity map

Page 13

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=9096&Ver=4
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=9096&Ver=4


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

 The next stage would be to add data on ecosystem services and 
economic data to create a Natural Capital Baseline Map to identify the 
environmental constraints and opportunities in relation to growth side by 
side.

 This map would act as a robust, integrated evidence base for planners, 
enabling better, quicker decision making about proposed developments 
and strategic allocations. 

 The Committee heard this is another example of Gloucestershire being 
on the forefront of environmental issues.

Cyber Central Update
 This covered aspirations for the site going forward, the project needs to 

create an evidence of what it will deliver for the county and its economy.
 It is a project that fits well with the aspirations of Gloucestershire as a 

whole and the Local Industrial Strategy being produced by the GFirst 
LEP.

4.3 Members were informed that there had been two requests for funding 
approved from the Business Rates Pool which were; the Rail Investment 
Strategy and Cyber Central Project. The Joint Committee had agreed to 
defer the funding decision for both the City Region Board and the Natural 
Capital Mapping pending further information. An additional meeting would be 
arranged in January 2020, to consider these requests, as well as to consider 
agenda item’s 9 and 10 which were deferred due to time constraints.

4.4 Members of the Scrutiny Committee expressed their concern on issues they 
observed at the Joint Committee meeting that morning. Members highlighted 
that that there were people leaving the meeting before decisions had been 
made, additional items being added that weren’t on the agenda, 
inadequate/unavailable reports and confusion over who was proposing 
items. 

4.5 Members requested an update on actions taken to address this at the next 
meeting and that all papers are made available beforehand on both the Joint 
and Scrutiny Committee agendas. It was stressed that members are unable 
to properly scrutinise items when there were no papers available in advance.

ACTION: DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

4.6 In response, Cllr Molyneux fully accepted the observations and advised the 
Committee will be taking steps to formalise the process going forward. 

4.7 A member sought clarity of the decision making accountability for the district 
representatives to their own district Councils. It was advised district councils 
are required to appoint a representative to the Joint Committee who has the 
authority to make the decisions required.

Page 14



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

4.8 There was a discussion how the natural habitat mapping would be used 
once completed. It was advised that this project would be used to inform best 
decision for planning etc. going forward. Knowledge such as this would 
become increasingly important due to the climate emergency. It was also 
confirmed that the only potential to be explored in terms of monetising this 
project could be selling the information once the map is completed. There 
will be no plans to sell the natural habitats themselves. 

4.9 Referring to the Public Health report, a member requested that the Scrutiny 
Committee look into a piece of work to understand why the social mobility 
index gap is so wide between Stroud and other parts of the County.

ACTION: DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

6. GFIRST LEP - INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 

6.1 The Chair invited Mally Findlater, Programme Manager at the GFirst LEP, to 
present the report on the Investment Portfolio.

6.2 The report was taken as read and the Committee were informed that it 
represented an early part of the process in anticipation for further clarity from 
government on the criteria and funding opportunities. It was a fairly uncertain 
picture from central government at the moment.

6.3 A member questioned the phrase ‘investment portfolio’ and whether it should 
be a ‘funding portfolio’ instead. In response it was advised that the LEP 
would only agree 3rd party funding if the project on offer would have an 
investment back into the county and therefore they saw ‘investment portfolio’ 
as better suited.

6.4 There was a discussion on timing for the Scrutiny Committee to be involved 
in the next funding allocation process. It was reiterated at this time, the 
picture is unclear, the criteria for projects has not been confirmed from 
Government and it is not known when this will happen. It was advised that it 
is not the Committee’s role to take part in the selection of projects but they 
request an opportunity to scrutinise what projects are eventually selected 
and the merits of that selection.

6.5 The Chair informed the Committee that following the previous meeting’s 
action, they are working with the LEP offline to understand how the 
Committee can improved its scrutiny. 

6.6 A member questioned where the funding for the LEP is drawn from within 
Government. Reiterating that the LEP are still unclear on the criteria for the 
next funding round, it was advised that it is usually drawn from Capital. It is 
envisaged that funds may be drawn from the UK Shared Prosperity Fund to 
replace the EU funding received currently.

Page 15



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

6.7 It was noted by a member that a lot of power lies in the first stage of project 
selection, effectively being the ‘gatekeepers’ of the project pipeline and relies 
on the discretion of a very small group of people. It was questioned whether 
this is a satisfactory way to being the selection process.

6.8 It was advised that the main decision made at this stage is removing projects 
that are not within the LEPs remit. In this circumstance, the LEP will send 
project proposals to the most appropriate area e.g. local district councils. 

6.9 In addition, this is the stage where the LEP may ask advice where there may 
be a wider strategy that needs looking into instead of them funding one 
individual project. The example given is if they had five separate cycling 
scheme projects, it would seek a view from Gloucestershire County Council 
on its cycling strategy and what would help the most.

7. GLOUCESTERSHIRE VISION 2050 UPDATE 

7.1 The Chair invited Mike Dawson, Chief Executive of Tewkesbury Borough 
Council, to present the item on Gloucestershire Vision 2050.

7.2 Members were reminded that they had requested an update in May of this 
year which is shown at Appendix 1.

7.3 It was advised that Leadership Gloucestershire have approved the Terms of 
Reference for the three boards established under the concordat (as shown in 
Appendix 2). Two boards have had their initial meetings but the Rural 
Ambitions Board is yet to meet.

7.4 The City Region Board submitted a request for funding to the Joint 
Committee that morning which was deferred pending further information.

7.5 A member questioned Publica’s role in this piece of work. It was advised that 
as a provider of resources jointly owned by the local authorities, it would be a 
decision for the individual authorities to decide their membership on the 
boards.

7.6 There was a question on the financial support for the boards. The Committee 
heard that the source for supporting the boards is yet to be determined. 
Given the size and importance of these projects, each will need to be 
properly supported and not just rely on the existing resource to expand its 
workload. 

7.7 As previously mentioned, one of the boards had submitted a funding request 
to the Economic Growth Joint Committee which is currently viewed as the 
most appropriate source at the moment.

7.8 There was a discussion about how the Committee will properly scrutinise the 
work of the boards, especially in relation to their environmental 

Page 16



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

impacts/policies. It was reiterated that it is still early days for the boards at 
the moment and the detail is still being developed.

7.9 It was noted that none of the boards are decision making bodies, their 
visions will steer and drive work within the county but decisions will remain 
with the appropriate bodies as they currently stand. 

7.10 Members were reassured that Economic Growth would be the Committee 
best placed to scrutinise the vision, work and finances of the boards once 
they were up and running. Members were especially keen to understand the 
funding process for work of the boards in advance to allow effective scrutiny. 
It was stressed that the democratic accountability of Vision 2050 is left 
behind.

7.11 The Chair requested that going forward, officers keep the Committee up to 
date with regular briefings on the Vision 2050 work. It was noted that Mike 
Dawson was only one of the lead officers involved with the boards and going 
forward, all lead officers should be involved with scrutiny updates.

ACTION: MIKE DAWSON/DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

CHAIR

Meeting concluded at 15:55

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PLAN 2020-21

20 May 2020 
EXRTA: Joint with Environment Committee

3 June 2020 16 September 2020

Potential item: Taxi Licensing Task Group 
Report

GFirst LEP

Quarter 4 performance report

Local Transport Plan Review – post public 
consultation

Quarter 4 2019/20 Performance Report GFirst LEP

Quarter 1 (2020/21) performance report

21 October 2020 18 November 2020

GFirst LEP Item GFirst LEP Item

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 4



POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS

1 Business Rate Pooling 7 Geographical context of the ‘South West 
of England’

2 National Policy Development (including industrial 
strategy)

8 Apprenticeship Update

3 Infrastructure and Density 9 Improvements to the rail network 
infrastructure for Gloucestershire – 
feasibility of light rail network

4 Housing (incorporating a review of potential 
changes to the Joint Core Strategy)

10 Work force development

5 Transportation Links Public Transport 11 Housing availability

6 Engaging with the 16 to 50 year old age group 12 Modular developments/carbon neutral 
plans

P
age 20



LOCAL MEETINGS SUMMARY
MARCH 2020

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. In June 2017 the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee 
(GEGSC) agreed that the two ‘stand alone’ Committee meeting dates in 
February and October would be held at one of the six district council offices 
(arranged on a rotational basis).

1.2.This aimed to provide an opportunity for each authority to present to the 
Scrutiny Committee an overview of the economic growth related issues in 
their area, and for all members of the respective district to attend the meeting 
and present questions on local issues.

1.3. In addition, the Scrutiny Committee would aim to gain a better understanding 
of the issues impacting the economic growth agenda for each district and 
consider how engagement between the GFirst LEP, the Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC), the GEGSC and District 
Authorities might be improved.

1.4.The following report has been produced to provide the Committee with a 
summary of points and issued raised at all six local meetings.

1.5.Comments and observations from the discussion at this meeting will form an 
outcome report which will be submitted to the following bodies:

a) The GEGJC (via Cllr Cromwell as Scrutiny Chair);
b) Gloucestershire County Council (via the scrutiny update report to full 

council); and
c) All six District Authorities (via their local representatives on this 

Committee).

2. TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL – 19 OCTOBER 2017

2.1.Local Presentations

2.1.1. Mike Dawson, Chief Executive, Katie Power, Economic Development 
Officer, Annette Roberts, Head of Development Services and Lead 
Member for Economic Development and Promotion, Cllr Rob Bird gave 
an overview of issues relating specifically to the economic growth of the 
Tewkesbury area.

2.1.2. This included an update on the Joint Core Strategy (JCS), a 
partnership agreement between Gloucester City Council, Cheltenham 
Borough Council (CBC) and Tewkesbury Borough Council (TBC).

2.2.Overview of points raised

2.2.1. As part of a new ‘economic development and tourism strategy’, TBC’s 
ambition was to become the ‘growth engine’ for Gloucestershire. Key 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



aspirations included; identifying and delivering employment land; 
maximising the growth potential of Junctions 9 and 10 of the M5 
Motorway; the regeneration of the town centre, and delivering major 
housing development.

2.2.2. The Economic Development Strategy 2017-2021 for Tewkesbury 
identified several priority areas for consideration. These included; 
employment land planning; transport infrastructure improvements; 
providing business growth support; and improvements to employability, 
education and training.

2.2.3. Economic opportunities included:

 Its unique and centralised geographical location;
 Access to major transport links, (road, rail and air); 
 The amount of available employment land; 
 The diverse and varied economy; 
 Its identity as an established base for high quality manufacturing, 

(including high tech aero engineering); 
 Tourism; and
 Major housing development opportunities.

2.2.4. Details of some of the schemes that had been put in place to 
encourage businesses to locate/re-locate to the area included; support 
provided to develop and grow urban localities; funding opportunities; 
and support of the ongoing regeneration of the town centre. 

2.2.5. The Council was committed to facilitating an environment aimed at 
promoting entrepreneurship and inward investment.

2.2.6. A particular area of interest highlighted was the innovative work being 
cultivated between TBC and the People’s Republic of China.

2.2.7. It was encouraged for members to become more familiar with the work 
of the LEP in delivering growth projects for the area and requested that 
the Council be included in strategic planning discussions with the LEP. 

2.3.Outcomes

Some of the outcomes from the discussion, included:

a) Investment in Junctions 9 and 10 of the M5 Motorway would be key to 
improving accessibility to Tewkesbury and the wider Gloucestershire area. 

b) The current location of Gloucestershire Airport, (with its close proximity to 
the M5 Motorway), to be promoted as an additional transport link for the 
county; 

c) Investment in the use of the River Severn for commercial and commuting 
purposes could create an additional mode of sustainable transport for 
Gloucestershire; 

Page 22



d) Tourism and Vision 2050 presentations to be added to the GEGSC work 
plan for further consideration; 

e) Investment in major housing development for Gloucestershire forms a key 
consideration for the Tewkesbury Borough Strategic Economic Plan; 

f) Investment in modular housing to be promoted to support delivery of the 
housing requirement for Gloucestershire; 

g) The GEGSC to consider ways of overcoming barriers to development, 
including seeking ideas for more collaborative engagement with people 
aged between 16 to 50; 

h) Issues affecting Broadband delivery in rural areas. Limited coverage in 
some parts of the county was still considered a barrier to economic 
growth; 

i) Proposals for seeking elevated status as a National Park could have an 
impact on future planning/development proposals. The matter was referred 
to the Economic Growth Senior Officer Group for further consideration. 

j) It was suggested, (as a representative on the Joint Committee and as 
Chairman of the Senior Officer Group), Mike Dawson attend future 
Scrutiny Committee meetings, if able to do so. 

3. COTSWOLD DISTRICT COUNCIL – 22 FEBRUARY 2018

3.1.Local Presentations

3.1.1. Cllr Stephen Hirst, (local representative on the GEGSC), Cllr 
Christopher Hancock, (Cabinet Member for Enterprise and 
Partnerships), Nigel Adams, (Head of Democratic Services), and 
James Brain, (Forward Planning Manager for Cotswold District Council) 
gave an overview of issues affecting the local economy and the growth 
ambitions of the Cotswold District.

3.2.Overview of points raised

3.2.1. The adoption of the Cotswold Business Development Plan aimed to 
protect and enhance the environment, whilst striving to support the 
economic growth of the local area, ensuring sustainability for the future.

3.2.2. Setting out the corporate objectives from which to support the business 
plan, officers reinforced the following:

 Joint working with the GFirst LEP and agencies and communities 
within the district to remove any barriers to the creation of new 
employment opportunities; 

 Supporting sustainable tourism; 

Page 23



 Investigating new means of increasing the number of international 
visitors to the Cotswolds; and 

 Improving the wider economic growth of the county from improved 
strategic decision making and better utilisation of public sector 
resources and infrastructure development.

3.2.3. Economic challenges outlined included:

 Housing needs and prices;
 Ageing population;
 The need to invest in the local infrastructure;
 The net loss of B Class employment land since 2011;
 Limitations imposed by transport links in the area (in particular the 

A417 Missing Link Highway);
 Poor broadband and mobile phone coverage;
 Below average earnings;
 The demographic challenge;
 The low rental value of commercial properties; and
 The potential impact of the National Park status.

3.2.4. Economic opportunities outlined included:

 ‘Cotswold’ brand;
 The architectural and environmental heritage of the area;
 The number of research, education and training institutes;
 Interest from key employers to expand existing sites;
 Growing significant micro enterprises; and
 Anticipated opportunities from Gloucestershire 2050 initiatives.

3.2.5. The following perceptions were put forward as potential barriers to 
growth:

 The LEP was struggling to understand the council’s economic 
priorities and needs; 

 The local authority questioned why this perception of disconnect 
existed, and what could the Council, (and other Councils), do to 
better articulate its needs and ultimately access funding to deliver 
economic growth for their areas; 

 Lack of involvement by the local authority in the Cotswold Business 
Implementation Plan – CBC requested that the council and 
partners be allowed to embrace and own the required actions; and

 It was acknowledged that fundamental to everything was the 
relationship that existed between GFirst LEP, businesses and local 
communities. Collaboration between the individual factions was 
essential to the economic growth of the district. 

3.3.Outcomes

The following proposals were put forward as suggestions for the GFirst LEP to 
consider as potential initiatives for the future. 

Page 24



a) Endorsement of, and support in implementing the Cotswold Business 
Implementation Plan; 

b) Endorsement of the Royal Agricultural University Growth Bid; 

c) A Physical Growth Hub Presence; 

d) Brokerage for Apprenticeships; 

e) Key Stakeholder Engagement; 

f) Cotswold Parking Study Update/Implementation; 

g) Business Support – Signposting 

h) Business Support – Assistance to address loss of business premises 

4. CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – 19 OCTOBER 2017

4.1.Local Presentations

4.1.1. Cllr Steve Jordan (Leader of the Council), Tim Atkins (Manager Director 
for Place and Growth), and Tracey Crews (Director of Planning, Place 
and Growth) gave an overview of issues relating specifically to the 
economic growth of Cheltenham Borough. 

4.2.Overview of points raised

4.2.1. A key focus for CBC was the pursuit, enhancement and development of 
business opportunities in Cheltenham, directed at creating positive 
impact on the wider Gloucestershire area. 

4.2.2. Economic opportunities outlined included:

 Location, (located at the heart of Gloucestershire);
 Connectivity, (rail, road and air);
 Links to the cyber industry; 
 Local industry including heritage and tourism; and 
 Proximity to the Cotswold Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.

4.2.3. In relation to tourism, Cheltenham benefits significantly from recognition 
as a leading location for the hosting of several major cultural and 
sporting festivals, including; Jazz; Literature; Food and BBC Musical 
Events. In addition, Cheltenham Racecourse provides significant 
beneficial value and importance to the local economy. 

4.2.4. Economic challenges outlined included:

 The lack of a centralised focal point for the town centre;

Page 25



 Transport/accessibility concerns, (including limited parking 
arrangements); 

 The controversial matter of access (people versus cars) via Boots 
Corner;

 Maintaining and creating local businesses on the High Street;
 Housing development; 
 The demographic challenge; 
 Planning/developer concerns; 
 The impact of climate change; and
 Skills and education. 

4.2.5. CBC continued to strive relentlessly to bid for future investment by 
working with local communities and partners to ‘collectively’ present a 
strong business case for Cheltenham and the surrounding 
environment.

4.2.6. Key projects underway at the time of the presentation included: 
Cheltenham Cyber Park Scheme; Cheltenham Spa Railway Station 
Scheme; investment in improvements to Junction 10 of the M5 
Motorway; and creation of the Cheltenham Growth Hub. Cheltenham to 
also benefit from the £1.8 million investment in Gloucestershire Airport, 
Staverton. 

4.3.Outcomes

Some of the outcomes from the discussion, included:

a) Improved communication, (between the LEP and the districts).

b) Lobbying of government to recognise the challenges presented to 
Cheltenham, (and the wider area).

c) Collective support to promote the ‘vision’ from which to take the county 
forward was essential.

d) It was felt this was a critical and exciting time for Cheltenham, with 
many schemes about to become reality over the course of the next few 
years

5. FOREST OF DEAN DISTRICT COUNCIL – 14 FEBRUARY 2019

5.1.Local Presentations

5.1.1. Peter Williams, Head of Paid Service, Wendy Jackson, Regeneration 
Manager and Cllr Richard Leppington, Vice-Chair of the Forest 
Economic Partnership, of issues relating specifically to the economic 
growth for the Forest of Dean.

5.2.Overview of points raised

Page 26



5.2.1. There were currently around 4000 businesses registered in the area, 
91% of which employed less than five people. The largest employer 
sector was manufacturing, followed by health, construction and 
education. Tourism was also a growing sector.

5.2.2. Economic challenges outlined included:

 Although appreciated as a benefit as well, its highly sensitive 
landscape;

 Restraint from transport links, mainly congestion on the roads; 
 House prices were up around 12% which was a benefit for home 

owners but also further increased the affordability gap; 
 The Council’s capacity and sustainability in light of budget cuts; 
 The need for good quality employment land;
 A lack of available skilled careers in the area; and
 The demographic challenge.

5.2.3. In 2018, the Forest Economic Partnership (FEP) was created to be the 
united voice for delivering a thriving and sustainable economy in the 
Forest of Dean. The main challenges for the district economy (as 
outlined above) had formed the basis for four sub-groups within the 
Partnership:

 Education and Skills: How to get the workforce needed for the 
District now and in the future to power and sustain economic 
growth.

 Transport and Infrastructure: To look at the transport routes in the 
District to enable them become fit for purpose.

 Digital Connectivity: To take practical steps to get the speed, 
reliability and connectivity to support the ways people increasingly 
work, live, study and play now and in the future.

 Bridges & Boarders: To consider the benefit of participating in the 
South Wales-West of England economic powerhouse.

5.2.4. There were now 150 members of the FEP representing more than 100 
organisations and businesses and it had submitted to five public 
consultations, including Vision 2050. It had also won a Federation of 
Small Business award.

5.3.Outcomes

Some of the outcomes from the discussion, included:

a) Highways congestion at Chepstow – GCC were in ongoing discussions 
with Monmouthshire County Council to find a joint solution. It was 
emphasised however that any solution would carry a huge financial 
pressure on the local authorities involved.

Page 27



b) A suggestion of rail link upgrades needed at Lydney station and additional 
stations/services being made available.

c) The downgrading of bus services in the area due to Stagecoach 
consistently losing money on many services. Members acknowledged the 
funding pressures on GCC to support bus services where Stagecoach 
could not and noted that the FEP is currently looking into this issue.

d) The ongoing issue of blackspots on mobile and broadband connections.

e) The potential benefits of creating corporate videos to showcase and 
support business in local areas. It was advised that other areas have 
produced videos through local donations and it was something the LEP 
were exploring on a county-wide basis.

f) The LEP had a number of business groups that represent specific sectors; 
such as the Visitor Economy and Tourism sector.

6. STROUD DISTRICT COUNCIL – 30 OCTOBER 2019

6.1.Local Presentations

6.1.1. Andrew Cummings, Strategic Director of Finance, Mark Russell, Head 
of Planning Strategy and Cllr Simon Pickering, Chair of the 
Environment Committee, gave an overview of the issues affecting the 
local economy and the growth ambitions of the Stroud District.

6.2.Overview of points raised

6.2.1. Members were shown a short film that showcased the highlights of 
Stroud: http://www.visitthecotswolds.org.uk/film/

6.2.2. The economy was dominated by manufacturing with very large 
organisations such as Renishaw being based in the district. On the 
other hand, it also had a large number (80%) of very small businesses 
which did not attract business rates and had less than ten employees.

6.2.3. The results of an annual survey of how satisfied residents and 
businesses were to live and work in the district showed an above 
national average result reaching 94-96% satisfaction.

6.2.4. The Local Plan centred growth around the main towns and areas of 
employment, whilst also creating two new garden villages at Wisloe 
and Sharpness.

6.2.5. These new settlements would be built around the garden city principles 
and include 3,900 houses (with more planned post-2040), a secondary 
school, a sustainable transport system and new/or expanded rail 
stations. 

Page 28

http://www.visitthecotswolds.org.uk/film/


6.2.6. Carbon neutrality would be a golden thread running through the Local 
Plan and whole council operation in order to keep on track with the 
Council’s targets.

6.2.7. There was no reason why economic growth and the protecting of the 
environment could not go ‘hand in hand’.

6.2.8. Examples were given of the ‘Warm and Well’ and ‘Target 2050 Loan’ 
schemes retrofitting existing housing to be more energy efficient and 
reduce their energy consumption. In turn this has reduced energy bills 
and CO2 emissions in the long-term.

6.2.9. The adoption of a Natural Flood Management scheme had seen a 
significant reduction in flood warnings (at different stages) between 
2012 and 2016.

6.2.10. Economic challenges outlined included:

 The demographic challenge – over the next 25 years the working 
population in Stroud would rise by 2.6% whereas those retired 
would rise by 56%;

 House prices – the average house in Stroud was just over nine 
times the average salary in the area;

 Resourcing Economic Development;
 Living within our environmental limits;
 Transport links (including M5 congestion); and
 Post-Brexit economy.

6.3.Outcomes

Some of the outcomes from the discussion included:

a) It was vital to have a ‘one county’ joined up approach towards housing, 
business and employment land. In the next 25-30 years, the county 
would need to deliver housing for a 50% rise in its population and it was 
not viable long-term to continue to build around existing settlements.

b) It was noted the existing planning techniques also had a knock on effect 
for public transport capacity and highways congestion.

c) Members were advised that Cabinet Members, Chief Executive, Leaders 
and other relevant senior officers and members from across 
Gloucestershire would be having meetings over the next few months to 
discuss a number of key issues such as strategic planning, climate 
change, major infrastructure, Fastershire and skills and employment.

d) It was suggested that there needed to be a county-wide discussion on 
how to address carbon neutral housing as a collective and attract 
companies such as WeLink to ‘buy into’ the area and offer their services 
locally. This referenced retrofitting existing housing as well as using 
things such as modular housing for future developments.

Page 29



e) An increase in housing demand, coupled with a move to retrofit/produce 
carbon neutral housing may lead to a void in the availability of skilled 
tradesperson locally. The move away from traditional trade qualifications 
and the demographic challenge in the county would also add to this.

f) Making sure education providers were providing the right qualifications 
that fit the growth demand in the county.

g) It was queried how, going forward, all seven authorities would co-
ordinate their climate change strategies.

h) The Committee requested to explore the developing green industry in 
the county in more detail, specifically in relation to modular building.

7. GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL – 26 FEBRUARY 2020

7.1.Local Presentations

7.1.1. Cllr Paul James, former Leader and Cabinet Member for Regeneration 
and the Economy for Gloucester City, David Evans, City Growth & 
Delivery Manager and Ian Edwards, Head of Place, gave an overview 
issues affecting the local economy and the growth ambitions of the 
Gloucester City.

7.2.Overview of points raised

7.2.1. Regeneration of the City had been the best part of a 20 year project, 
dating back to the first major scheme at the opening of the Oxstalls 
Campus in 2002 to form part of the University of Gloucestershire 
(UoG).

7.2.2. Other projects since have included; Southwest Bypass, the Greyfriars, 
Railway Triangle, Baker Quay and Blackfriars developments,  bus 
station, Project Pilgrim at the Cathedral, UoG Business School and 
Kings Quarter.

7.2.3. The Council has recently purchased a number of sites including the 
Eastgate Shopping Centre – this reflected an ambition of the Council to 
have influence over the future development of major sites in the City to 
make sure it provided the best benefit for the City as a whole.

7.2.4. Unlike the national picture, Gloucester had a mixture of large, 
traditional employers and new SME’s in emerging industries. Large 
employers in Gloucester are double the South West average- meaning 
the local economy was exposed to the changing nature of productivity 
and those sectors in decline e.g. traditional manufacturing.

7.2.5. There was a significant challenge with the high street and retails 
changing role nationally. There needed to be a developed offer for 
people to spend more time in the city centre.

Page 30



7.2.6. Economic challenges outlined included:

 Unemployment relatively low but the highest in the county;
 Several areas of deprivation;
 Demographic challenge (although noting a higher population of 

young residents compared to the rest of the county);
 Low property values but high development costs;
 An over-reliance on public sector jobs – a lot of business growth 

takes place on the boundary of Gloucester and outside the 
administrative boundaries;

 Low qualification rates, particularly at NVQ4+;
 Changing role of city centre;
 Affordability issues around grade A office space alongside declining 

standard of City Centre offices;
 Expanding the success of the Quays and Docks beyond;
 Making sure the economic benefits of growth and investment 

spread to all in the community; and
 Addressing climate change action.

7.2.7. Economic opportunities outlined included:

 High proportion of young residents;
 Potential to attract niche/specialist retail, leisure operators and 

offices to the Centre;
 First class higher education facilities at the UoG;
 Development of emerging and growing business sectors e.g. 

advanced manufacturing, cultural, cyber security, digital, nuclear 
etc.;

 Environmental technologies and ‘greening business’;
 The developing culture industry to be used a driver of growth; 
 Being awarded Purple Flag status; and
 A potential for Gloucester to be the catalyst for action on the 

demographic challenge due to its younger population.

7.3.  Outcomes

Some of the outcomes from the discussion, included:

a) A recognised need for schools, Higher and Further Education providers 
to respond to the changing business needs of not just the City, but 
county-wide and even nationally.

b) The skills gap in the county not only related to young people but also 
older workers who might not possess the skills needed for modern day 
jobs.

c) A need to provide training and apprenticeship opportunities for all levels 
of skills and not to focus entirely on the technical end of the job market.

Page 31



d) The job market also needed to address an increase in demand for skilled 
jobs such as retrofitting houses to become carbon neutral.

e) The need to recognise that projects such as Cyber Central were not just 
for the benefit of Cheltenham but for the county as a whole.

f) Due to the decline in retail, there was a need to repurpose city centres to 
include a retail, business and housing mix.

g) Cheltenham and Gloucester offered two different culture experiences; 
this was a growing sector in the City. The need to recognise that the City 
and the Town have a complementary offer to each other and should not 
be seen as in competition.

h) The need to not only providing skills opportunities for young people but 
also helping them to build resilience against issues they might face.

i) There was an issue of residents not knowing what’s going on in terms of 
activities or regeneration etc.

Page 32



Gloucestershire Joint Economic Scrutiny Committee 
18TH March 2020 

 
Report: Performance Reports – Q3 2019/20 
  
Presented by: Mally Findlater, Programme Manager, GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership 
Background 
 
Supporting papers: 

• Growth Deal Progress Dashboard Q3 19/20 

• Growth Deal Project Summary Q3 19/20 

• LGF Data Capture Q3 19/20 BEIS return - summary 

GFirst maintains programme management performance data based on monthly, quarterly and annual 

returns from all projects. This is managed in collaboration with the Accountable Body within the forum 

of the Programme Management Group (PMG). The Dashboard and Project Summary are published on 

the GFirst website, and provide an overview of the key metrics associated with the Local Growth Fund 

(LGF) capital investments. 

To satisfy the commitments with BEIS, a quarterly report is submitted to them, based on the same 

data, but using a complicated reporting spreadsheet that is provided and managed by BEIS. The LGF 

Data Capture Q3 19/20 BEIS return – summary is attached and covers the Q3 19-20 period (1stOctober 

to 31st December 2019). 

At the start of the programme, each LEP was given a financial profile for the annual allocations of LGF. 

The reporting against this is for: 

• Out turn – Where there is a contractual commitment to a project in the form of a funding 

agreement or memorandum of understanding, the accountable body manages the process of 

moving funds across to the project, or, in the case of GCC projects, a holding account.  

 

• Actual Spend – projects report quarterly on the actual funds spent on delivering the project. 

This may be in advance of claiming the funds from the Account. 

To date: 

Outturn – the commitment in 2015-2017 was £36.250m. The amount reported was £5.232m under 

which has been recouped in subsequent years. In 17/18 and 18/19 the amount reported was in line 

with the allocation. The expectation is that, with careful management, the reporting for 19/20 and 

20/21 will also be in line with the allocation.  

The BEIS spreadsheet uses cumulative forecasts to present some of the data which results in some 

totals that differ slightly from the locally held data. This is recognised, and understood, and does not 

impact on the final results which are in line with the local reporting. 

For the Q3 report, Outturn numbers were at 8% of forecast, as the cycle of activity and reporting is 

heavily weighted on Q4. The expectation is that, at year end, the remaining outturn will be in line with 

projected figures. 

The Contractual Commitments now include £11.805m for Phases 1 and 2 of the Cheltenham Cyber 

Project where funding was approved during the LEP December Board Meeting and Funding 

Agreements signed very quickly afterwards.   

Page 33

Agenda Item 8



There are two more projects to add to contractual commitments in Q4. These Funding Agreements 

are in development.  If completed in time, this bring the contractual commitments in line with the 

projected forecast. However, if not, this would impact on both the contractual commitment and out 

turn reported for Q4. 

Actual Spend – The Q3 BEIS report showed actual spend to be 40% of forecast. This will improve 

considerably by year end, albeit with some challenges. In particular, a number of the transport 

schemes are experiencing delays.  

In addition to the LGF financial reporting, the Growth Deal with Government identified a number of 

key output metrics that are monitored and reported (see dashboard and BEIS return): 

• Non- LGF spend (leverage & match) –This is delivering well against forecast and commitment 

• Housing - A large number of the forecast housing will be delivered beyond the programme 

period 

• Jobs - The jobs numbers have been lower than forecast, which is partially due to under-

reporting by the Growth Hub, which is being rectified. There will also be a delay related to the 

Cyber Park beyond the programme end. 

• Skills - Delivery is already ahead of commitment 

• Apprenticeships - Delivery is already ahead of commitment 

• Employment land – There is a slight delay, as a significant number is linked to the Cyber Park 

• Commercial Floorspace - There is a slight delay. Some of this will be delivered within 

programme, and a % beyond (specifically the Cyber Park) 

Recommendations: 
 
This paper is for information only. 
 
If you require further information please email: 
Mally.findlater@gfirstlep.com 

Page 34



Growth Deal Progress Dashboard - all projects

Q3 19/20 to 31-12-19

Out turn of funds Totals (£m's)

Govt Profile (inc DfT schemes) £101.72

Actual (to Q3 19/20) m £66.74

Actual Spend vs Out turn Totals (£m's)

Plan £101.408

Actual (to Q3 19/20) m £61.96

(LGF spend only)

Jobs (direct & indirect) 15/16 & 16/17 Totals 

Plan 16676

Actual (to Q3 19/20) 2058

Direct Match - £m committed Totals (£m's)

Forecast £101.90

Actual (to Q3 19/20) m £101.58

Total Leverage - £m Totals (£m's)

Forecast £355.10

Actual (to Q3 19/20) m £168.94

Housing Unit starts Totals 

Forecast 3545

Actual (to Q3 19/20) 52

2018/19

£26.31m

£15.5m

First phase of Blackfriars scheme complete. Phase 2 planning approved. First 'major' hosuing scheme to come forward will be A40 Innsworth Gateway. Additional housing from Merrywalks project.

£25.7m

2016/17 2017/18

Positive jobs activity from Growth Hub continues to be collected and recorded, although a recognition that the job numbers set are hugely ambitious. Inward Investment project should also contribute towards the target. 

2015/16

2058

Post 2021

£33.0m

52

2019/20

£76.8m

2017/18

£13.72m

£168.94

£66.74

£101.58

2019/20

£12.4m

2016/17 2017/18

£13.170m £23.802m £13.344m

2018/19

Post 2021

2401

2020/21

£82.2m,

£18.7m

2019/20

2016/17

£15.66m

£14.859m

2020/212017/18

£13.355m

2018/19

£10.699m

£10.323m

Post 2021 

Spend will accelerate on Innswoth Gateway and Cheltenham Cyber Park developments.  In addition there will be increased Growth Hub Network spending in 19/20.

£18.385m £22.593m

2015/16 2016/17

£13.170m £29.150m

2019/20

£20.483m

2018/19

£61.96

2020/21

2019/20

899

2017/18

1160

2018/19

49 320

2019/20

775

2020/21

1855 2101

2020/21

3115

£46.1m £76.2m

2018/19

2015/16

£15.47m

2020-22

7546

2015/16

Page 1 of 2

P
age 35



Growth Deal Progress Dashboard - all projects

Q3 19/20 to 31-12-19

Apprenticeship starts Totals 

Forecast 1577

Actual (to Q3 19/20) 2110

Skills - floorspace (m2) Totals m
2

Forecast 22453

Actual (to Q3 19/20) 21953

Commercial Floorspace (m2) Totals m
2

Forecast 105310

Actual (to Q3 19/20) 16318

(not to scale)

Employment Land (Ha) Total Ha

Forecast 86.0

Actual (to Q3 19/20) 21

Skills - Qualifications Totals 

Forecast 4960

Actual (to Q3 19/20) 3614

21

2015/16

11

2019/20

3

2020/21

60.97

Post 20212016/17 2017/18

2016/17

35000

1461

7761

257

2020/21

2018/19

2016/17

2017/18

2110

2017/18

100 340

2018/19

3614

2016/17

2016/17

9

2017/18

3

9950

2019/20

514

2017/18

900

2018/19

430 450

2018/19

6757

2019/20

24292 28500

2020/21

10542

1103

2019/20

1176

Opening of the Blackfriars student accomodation has added 6000m2 to total. Positive activity in relation to further hangar development at South Camp at Gloucs Airport.

3000

2020/21

1267

21953

16318

Page 2 of 2

P
age 36



Gloucestershire Growth Deal Projects Summary Key

As at 31/01/2020 Funding approved and progressing

Funding allocated but pending final board approval

Current Total Forecasts with Actuals where available

Project Name Growth Fund Category Homes Total jobs
Private 

Leverage £m's

Public Sector 

Leverage £m's

Commercial 

Floorspace m2 

Employment 

Land Ha

Skills 

Capital m2 App'ships
BCR (Road 

schemes)

Growth Hub Amalgamated 9,400,000£             Business Support 0 6644 £0.00 £26.0 2127 0 3800 0 N/A

Merrywalks Centre, Stroud* 3,000,000£             Business Support 0 500 £27.0 £0.0 20292 1.37 0 0 N/A

Farm 491 2,920,000£             Business Support 0 207 £0.8 £0.0 1380 0 0 0 N/A

Glos Airport Anson Park Development* 1,885,000£             Business Support 0 85 £7.0 £0.0 7500 4 0 0 N/A

Glos Airport South Camp 550,000£                 Business Support 0 106 £9.7 £0.0 12000 6.8 0 0 N/A

UK Digital Retail Innovation Centre 400,000£                 Business Support 0 50 £0.2 £0.0 550 0 150 0 N/A

Cheltenham Cyber Park * 22,000,000£           Enabling Infrastructure 1100 7500 £50.0 £0.0 40000 45 0 0 N/A

Cinderford Northern Link Road 3,800,000£             Enabling Infrastructure 110 0 £0.0 £5.3 0 2 0 0 N/A

Gloucester Railway Station Improvements* 3,750,000£             Enabling Infrastructure 200 300 £7.7 £0.6 10000 5.3 0 0 N/A

A40 Innsworth Gateway* 4,530,000£             Housing 1300 630 £3.3 £0.0 5000 8.3 0 0 TBC

Blackfriars & Quayside 4,130,000£             Housing 250 45 £85.0 £12.0 4000 2.5 0 0 N/A

Hartpury College, Tech-to-Plate 1,000,000£             Innovation 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0.0 500 0 N/A

GREEN Skills Centre 5,000,000£             Skills 0 125 £19.5 £15.1 0 10.7 4401 300 N/A

Berkeley Green Cyber Security Centre 3,000,000£             Skills 0 129 £4.0 £0.4 1461 0 1461 213 N/A

Cinderford  - New Gloscol Campus * 2,600,000£             Skills 55 150 £0.0 £12.5 0 0 6000 0 N/A

Gloucestershire STEM centres 2,096,000£             Skills 0 0 £0.0 £3.8 0 0 6141 1064 N/A

Elmbridge (Tail-end Major road scheme) 9,070,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £5.2 0 0 0 0 5

Gloucester Transport Hub ** 6,400,000£             Transport 100 0 £40.0 £8.8 1000 0 0 0 N/A

A419 Stonehouse Improvements 4,360,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 18

A40 Over Roundabout ** 2,230,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.1 £0.5 0 0 0 0 5

Gloucester South West By Pass 2,000,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.1 £5.3 0 0 0 0 12

Berkeley Bridge Replacement 1,990,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £1.0 0 0 0 0 5

West Cheltenham Walking and Cycling 1,600,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Cheltenham Spa Railway Station ** 1,497,000£             Transport 0 0 £1.8 £0.2 0 0 0 0 TBC

Lydney Cycling Improvements 1,000,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

St Barnabas Roundabout - scheme 

withdrawn by promoters
1,000,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Abbeymead /Metz Way ** 500,000£                 Transport 0 0 £1.0 £1.2 0 0 0 0 4

Forecast Totals* 101,708,000£     3115 16471 £257.2 £97.9 105310 86.0 22453 1577

Full Programme Commitment 2255 14280 N/A 75.3 N/A 1014

* for GD3 schemes includes outcomes post 2021

** Original GLTB scheme

£285.8

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Growth Deal Dashboard
LEP Name Gloucestershire LEP

This Quarter: Q3_1920

17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-25

Houses Completed 0 0 0 49 3 0 - 52

Forecast for year 185 - 0 49 185 405 2,601 3,240

Progress towards forecast 0% - - 100% 2% 0% - 2%

Jobs

Jobs Created 10 1,177 110 547 216 0 - 2,050

Apprenticeships Created* 46 0 930 593 587 0 - 2,110

Jobs including Apprenticeships 56 1,177 1,040 1,140 803 0 4,160

Forecast for year 1,973 1,429 1,855 1,973 2,967 9,637 17,861

Progress towards forecast 3% 73% 61% 41% 0% 0% 23%

* Apprenticeships included within jobs totals prior to 2017

Skills

Area of new or improved floorspace (m2) 1,415 0 6,461 15,542 1,415 0 - 23,418

Forecast for year 2,915 1,461 9,950 2,915 0 0 14,326

Progress towards forecast 49% 442% 156% 49% - - 163%

Number of New Learners Assisted 151 0 1,009 2,292 2,270 0 - 5,571

Forecast for year 1,576 900 1,495 1,576 1,687 6,250 11,908

Progress towards forecast 10% 112% 153% 144% 0% - 47%

Transport

Length of Road Resurfaced 0.3 0.0 5.0 1.0 0.3 0.0 - 6.3

Length of Newly Built Road 0.0 0.0 3.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 - 3.0

Length New Cycle Ways 4.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 4.0 0.0 - 5.0

Previous Quarter This Quarter Previous Quarter This Quarter

Project Name Q2_1920 Q3_1920 Project Name Q2_1920 Q3_1920

GROWTH HUB: Gloucestershire STEM Strategy G G - - -

GREEN project at Berkley G G - - -

Blackfriars and Quayside Regeneration G G - - -

Berkley Green Cyber Security Training and Conference CentreAG AG - - -

Gloucestershire Airport South East Camp Development ProjectG G - - -

Growth Hub Amalgamated AG AG - - -

Cinderford Northern Qtr Spine Road G G - - -

Gloucester Transport Hub G G - - -

Pre-Committed LGF Elmbridge Roundabout N/A N/A - - -

Abbeymead/Metz Way Corridor Improvements G G - - -

Agri-Tech Innovation Centre (Farm 491) G G - - -

Berkeley Bridges Replacement G G - - -

Cheltenham Spa Railway Improvements AG AG - - -

UK Digital Retail Innovation Centre AG A - - -

A40 Over Roundabout & Highnam G G - - -

A419 Corridor Improvements G G - - -

Cinderford New Campus G G - - -

Gloucester SW By-pass widening AG AG - - -

Merrywalks Centre Stroud G G - - -

Hartpury College Tech to Plate Centre G G - - -

Lydney Transport Strategy G G - - -

A40 Innsworth Gateway Roundabout AG AG - - -

Cheltenham Cyber Park AG AG - - -

Gloucestershire Airport Anson Park G G - - -

West Cheltenham Walking and Cycling Improvement (WCWCI) (previously named B4063 Staverton Bridge Junction Imp)AG AG - - -

St Barnabas Roundabout Safety Imp AG AG - - -

Gloucester Railway Station Improvements AG AG - - -

0 - - - - -

- - - - - -

- - - - - -

Project RAG Ratings

Deliverables Progress

15-17
Financial Year

Total
Housing

This Quarter

P
age 39



Growth Deal Dashboard

Growth Deal Performance

G

2015-16 2016-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 Total

£13,170,000 £23,079,605 £9,254,854 £8,499,446 £20,482,684 £14,856,992 £89,343,581

LGF Outturn 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21

Actual 229,728£                   31,054,000£     14,486,859£   9,354,822£       1,502,124£      -£                 56,397,805£                

Forecast for year 19,932,000£              35,453,000£     14,489,529£   9,046,471£       19,932,000£    14,852,000£    93,773,000£                

Progress towards forecast 1% 100% 103% 8% 0% 60%

LGF Expenditure

Actual 2,044,784£                19,902,710£     18,214,392£   10,648,282£     5,405,576£      -£                 54,170,960£                

Forecast for year 13,487,023£              24,301,710£     15,273,362£   14,072,628£     13,487,023£    26,835,000£    93,969,723£                

Progress towards forecast 15% 119% 76% 40% 0% 58%

Non-LGF Expenditure

Actual 2,604,215£                35,499,625£     26,576,131£   32,511,596£     5,822,031£      -£                 100,409,383£              

Forecast for year 7,853,450£                39,655,625£     -£                27,400,000£     7,853,450£      16,383,550£    91,292,625£                

Progress towards forecast 33% - 119% 74% 0% 110%

Total LGF + non-LGF Expenditure

Actual 4,648,999£                55,402,335£     44,790,523£   43,159,878£     11,227,607£    -£                 154,580,343£              

Forecast for year 21,340,473£              63,957,335£     15,273,362£   41,472,628£     21,340,473£    43,218,550£    185,262,348£              

Progress towards forecast 22% +293% +104% +53% +0% 83%

Contractual Commitments  (manual entry)

15-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 Total

Forecast 46,687,000£     2,089,000£     5,797,000£       20,130,000£    14,635,000£    89,338,000£                

Actual 46,687,000£     2,089,000£     5,746,471£       13,077,396£    67,599,867£                

Variance +0% +0% -1% -35% -100% -24%

Commentary

Section 151 Officer Approved

Name 

Date

This return establishes the Quarter 3 19-20 Position.

Outturn numbers are currently at 8% of forecast but we will be in a position at end of Q4 where remaining outturn is in line with projected figures, in particular with the Cheltenham 

Cyber Project .  We are making positive progress with actual spend and again are projecting the spend to be in line with forecast by the end of Q4.

The Contractual Commitments now include £11.805m for Phases 1 and 2 of the Cheltenham Cyber Project where funding was approved during the LEP December Board Meeting and 

Funding Agreements signed very quickly afterwards.  There are two more projects to add to contracutal commitments in Q4.  These Funding Agreements are being worked on at 

present.  This will then bring the Contractual Commitments in line with the projected forecast.

Project Number 029, has changed its name to West Cheltenham Walking and Cycling Improvements and this £1.6m project will become and additional element of the wider 

Cheltenham Cyber Park Project but will remain to be reported separately.

The 1,415m
2
 of new improved skills floorspace is reported for the Hartpury College Tech to Plate Centre which opened it's doors this quarter.   The numbers of new learners assisted 

are reported from the Berkeley Green Cyber Security Project.   4km of new cycle ways were created as part of the Lydney Transport Strategy.  The Growth Hub continue to follow up 

with clients on any job creation numbers.  A meeting is arranged with the A40 Innsworth Gateway Project promoters in Q4 where we can establish the position on housing.

Total

Financial Progress

LGF Award

15-17
Financial Year

This Quarter

Area lead comments

P
age 40



Director’s Report, Economy, Environment & Infrastructure
Scrutiny Committee Report

February 2020

This report summarises key areas likely to lead to decisions over the next 6 months, 
including updates on areas previously reported.  

1.0 Decisions

1.1      Relevant forthcoming decisions, by date due:
 Recommendation to Council – 2nd Review of the Statement of Community 

Involvement (SCI) for Gloucestershire (22nd April 2020)
 

1.2 Pending Items not yet published on the Forward Plan:
 Electric vehicle charging points (22nd April 2020)
 Community and Adult Skills Programmes funding 2020 – 2021(22nd April 2020)
 Refresh of the Local Developer User Guide (17th June 2020)

2.0 Highways update

2.1 Highways Contracts
 Storm Ciara and Storm Denis have stress tested emergency response capabilities. 

After each event reviews have been undertaken and improvements introduced 
where they have been identified.

 We are working with Ringway and Atkins on the 2020/21 programmes so that we 
have a full pipeline of works for both, ready for a smooth start to the year.

 Structural Maintenance Contract for next 2 years has been awarded to Tarmac – 
begins 1st April 2020.

2.2 £150m Highways Improvement Programme
 Delivery remains on track in the 19/20 financial year with the accelerated 

programme.
 The website shows the current schedule plus the interactive map for 19/20 and 

20/21 works.  

2.3 Highway Skills Academy
 13 apprentices appointed across GCC, Ringway and Atkins.
 Plan for 20/21 intake being developed currently with a further 8 apprentices 

anticipated.

2.4 Ash Die Back
 Following the approval of the £500k allocation at full council, we are developing a 

strategy to prioritise delivery. 

2.5 Major Schemes
 A419 Junction Improvements (Stonehouse) - The Chipmans Platt and Oldends 

Roundabouts are now substantially complete.  Works at Horsetrough Roundabout 
and the Downton signals junction continue with a programme completion of May 
2020

Page 41

Agenda Item 10

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=31595&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=31595&Opt=0


 A4173 Pitchcombe - Resurfacing works start 20th February for 2 weeks.  
Construction completion  is due in mid-March

 A38 Canal Bridges, Whitminster - Works are ongoing on site, there have been some 
delays with utility diversions, but we are hoping to mitigate these and keep on 
programme.

3.0 Community Infrastructure Update

3.1 Cheltenham Transport Plan
 Works to restore the road network to pre-Boots Corner trial arrangements are 

complete apart from some parking restrictions which are contingent upon the 
delivery of signs in February. 

 The crossing at Boots Corner is being replaced as it has reached the end of its life. 
For safety reasons the narrowing to a single traffic lane on the immediate approach 
will be retained. This has little if any impact on traffic flow but more importantly 
addresses road safety issues for vulnerable road users.

 Notwithstanding the decision to abandon the Phase 4 trial a significant number of 
local measures are being delivered in 2020/21 in and around the town centre. 
These range from investment in signals on the ring road, and at Boots Corner itself, 
to High Street public realm works led by Cheltenham Borough Council. 

3.2 Parking
 A cabinet panel is being set up to review the council’s road safety functions, 

including the TRO process, and will report back to Adult Social Care Scrutiny 
Committee.

 Work continues on the GWR car park expansion at Cheltenham Spa station, 
including 300 secure cycle parking spaces. Discussions are ongoing with GWR and 
LEP regarding securing the foot and cycle link to Lansdown Road.

 In January Environment Scrutiny Committee members debated the pros and cons 
of options for rolling out Electric Vehicle Charging Points in Gloucestershire. A 
focused approach that complements investment by the commercial sector was 
supported. As part of our Climate Change Action Plan the council will procure 200 
charging points. Atkins have been commissioned to draft the EV Strategy using the 
key objectives agreed at the last Environment Scrutiny and bring this back to the 
committee on 4th March 2020.

3.3 Climate Change & Air Quality
 Work is underway developing the 2020/21 ‘Year 1’ action plan as part of a five year 

rolling climate change action plan. In parallel the Air Quality & Health Partnership is 
prioritising those actions where we can maximise synergy with the Climate Change 
Strategy. To provide extra capacity a full time project manager has been appointed 
on a temporary basis pending recruitment to a permanent post after April.

4.0 Strategic Infrastructure update

4.1 A417 Missing Link
 RIS2 announcement is now expected imminently.

4.2 M5 Junction 9 and A46 (Ashchurch)
 The Strategic Outline Business Case for the M5 J9 / A46 scheme has been 

submitted to the DfT in January 2020;

Page 42



 Discussions re- possible future funding ongoing with both Homes England and 
Tewkesbury BC. 

4.3 M5 J10 / HIF bid
 A decision is expected to be imminent.

4.4 West Cheltenham / Cyber £22M
 Starting on site Spring 2020;
 Ongoing issue re-timing / extent of Highways England’s A40 / M5 ‘safety critical’ 

works. 

4.5 Local Transport Plan (LTP)
 Public consultation currently taking place (16th January – 26th March 2020). 

4.7 Local Plans / JCS 
 Review of JCS now underway following an ‘Issues and Options’ consultation which 

ended in January 2019;
 There is agreement with JCS officers that there should be an immediate review of 

the JCS CIL. 
 Stroud Local Plan – Consultation on Draft Local Plan – closed 22nd January 2020. 

Officer concerns submitted to SDC – especially transport issues re- the significant 
proposed development at Sharpness;

5.0 Libraries & Registration update

5.1 Library Strategy & Opening Hours
 Plans are in place to update the 2012 Library Strategy.  Staff sessions have been 

completed; however, there are ongoing discussions about a need for a Countywide 
reduction in library opening hours.

5.2 Stonehouse Library
 Stonehouse library will open in its new High Street location on Tuesday 14th April 

2020.  Whilst the actual opening hours have not yet been agreed we are hoping to 
be able to increase the weekly opening hours by an additional 6 hours.  The formal 
launch of the library will take place on Saturday 4th July 2020.

5.3 No Child Left Behind Awards
 Cheltenham Libraries have won an award in the Cheltenham Borough Council 

awards for their free children’s activities.

6.0 Waste Management update

6.1 Joint Waste Committee

 The four new contracts for Garden Waste Treatment commenced on 1 Feb 2020. 
 The Energy from Waste visitor centre should be completed by March, when an 

official opening will be held.  A media tour of the facility in January was successful, 
with local TV, radio and press in attendance. 

Contact Officer

Page 43



Colin Chick, Executive Director of Economy, Environment & Infrastructure
colin.chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk, 01452 328470

Page 44

mailto:colin.chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Final minutes]

	4 Work Plan
	7 Review of local meetings
	8 GFIRST LEP - performance report
	Growth Deal Progress Dashboard Q3 19-20 030220
	Growth Deal Project Summary Q3 19-20 030220
	LGF Data Capture Q3 19-20 EIS return - summary

	10 DIRECTORS REPORT

